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I. CALL TO ORDER:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Good evening. Good Evening.

I'm Shean Atkins Chair of the East Point Planning & Zoning

Commission and I am calling to order officially our regularly

scheduled April, 2013 meeting. Staff, if you would please give me a

Roll Call to make sure that we can establish a quorum.

II. ROLL CALL:

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Rene.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Tucker.

COMMISSIONER TUCKER: (No response.)

MS. CARTER: Fann.

COMMISSIONER FANN: (No response.)

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Atkins.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Present.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Mallory.

COMMISSIONER MALLORY: (No response.)

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Here.

MS. CARTER: Commissioner Bryant.

COMMISSIONER BRYANT: (No response.)

MS. CARTER: And Commissioner Washington.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Present.
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MS. CARTER: Commissioner Chair um, you have a quorum.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. In lieu of a pray, this

Body recognizes a Moment of Silence so at this time, we will have a

Moment of Silence.

III. MOMENT OF SILENCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. If you would please

stand and join me in the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. Commissioners, at

this time, I will entertain a motion to adopt the agenda as it has been

presented.

V. ADOPTION OF AGENDA:

COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I second the motion.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares, seconded by Commissioner Rene we adopt the agenda as

presented. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The agenda is adopted. Commissioners, at this time, I will entertain
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a motion for the approval of our March 21st, 2013 meeting minutes.

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES:

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon, seconded by Commissioner Wares that we adopt -- that we

approve our March 21st, 2013 meeting minutes. All in favor sound

aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

Our meeting minutes are approved for our March meeting. Staff,

would you please sound our first New Business Item, Case Number

2013 "Z" as in zebra-004-04.

VII. NEW BUSINESS:

MS. CARTER: Applicant is Yvan Maxy. Location is 1402 East

Vesta Avenue. Applicant is requesting a rezoning from R1A to R-2.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you.

MS. CARTER: This application requires a public hearing.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes. So it's been stated by Staff

this particular application requires a public hearing. I will read the

the rules of our public hearing and after that time, I will entertain a

motion to open the public hearing.
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(Whereupon Rules of Public Hearing are read as follows):

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Public hearings before the

Planning & Zoning Commission shall be conducted in accordance to

Section 10-2219 of the East Point Planning and Zoning Code of

Ordinances. Persons both favoring and opposing the proposed case

will be provided an opportunity to address the Commission. The

applicant for the zoning case or the applicant's representative, if any,

will be entitled to speak first followed by other speakers in favor of

the proposal for a total of fifteen minutes. Those opposed to the

proposed zoning case will then be permitted to speak for a total of

fifteen minutes. By majority vote, the Commission may increase the

total time for speakers provided each side is given the same amount

of time. If there is more than one speaker for a side, the Chair or

the presiding officer may limit the time allotted to each individual

speaker other than the zoning applicant. The zoning applicant may

reserve a portion of his allotted time for rebuttal. Speakers must

adhere to the rules of decorum. Prior to speaking, each speaker shall

identify him or herself and state his or her current address. Each

speaker shall speak only to the permits of the proposed zoning

decision under consideration, shall address remarks only to the

Commission and shall refrain from making personal attacks on any

other speaker. The presiding office may refuse a speaker the right to

continue, if after first being cautioned the speaker continues to

violate the rules of decorum. You've heard our rules for public

hearings. Commissioners, at this time, I will entertain a motion to
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open hearing for case 2013 "Z" as in zebra-004-04.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I move we open the public

hearing for said case.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon, seconded by Commissioner Washington that we open the

public hearing for this Case Number. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it. Is

the applicant here for this Agenda Item? Would you please approach

the podium.

(Whereupon Applicant Yvan Maxy approaches the podium.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: State your first and last name and

your current address.

YVAN MAXY: Sure. Yvan Maxy. 413 Angier Court Northeast,

Atlanta, Georgia, 30312.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: You may present your case.

YVAN MAXY: Yes. Uh, my name is Yvan Maxy. I'm here

representing Ms. Sherry Williams. Good evening everyone.

COMMISSIONERS: Good evening.
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YVAN MAXY: Ms. Williams purchased a property on February

25th. It was advertised and listed as a duplex and to our best

knowledge, based off our due diligence, it was built in 1960 as a

duplex. It's always been used as a duplex. It currently has the

layout of a duplex. As a matter of fact, the other twelve properties

on the street are also duplexes as well. Um, it was a foreclosed

property. Therefore, it's been vacant for over a year and due to the

City ordinance, it's reverted back to an R1. Her goal is to have it

converted back to an R-2, renovate it, possible live on one side and

rent out the other.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any other proponents

here for this zoning case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any other proponents

here for this zoning case?

AUDIENCE: Seeing none, are there any opponents here for

this zoning case?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Any opponents?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, Commissioners, at

this time, I will entertain a motion to close the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I second the motion.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares, seconded by Commissioner Rene we close the public hearing

for this Case Number. All in favor, sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public hearing is now closed. Staff, would you please sound

your recommendation.

MS. CARTER: The property at 1402 East Vesta Avenue, the

request for a rezoning for R1A to R-2, Staff recommends approval of

said request.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, you've heard from

the applicant and you've also heard Staff's recommendation. At this

time, I'll entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I make a motion that we

recommend approval for Case Number 2013Z-004-04, property at

1402 East Vesta Avenue.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon, seconded by Commissioner Rene that we approve -- we

recommend approval for this zoning case. Is this any discussion?
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COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, all in favor sound

aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the eyes have it.

We will recommend approval for this zoning matter. Thank you Mr.

Maxy.

YVAN MAXY: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Our next Agenda Item 2013 "P" as

in Paul-005-02. Staff, would you please sound this Agenda Item.

MS. CARTER: Applicant for this item is Metro Group

Development II, LLC, location is 2905 Main Street. It is a

Preliminary Plat. We have receive -- although, this is not a public

hearing, we have received a speaker card to speak. You can say

your option.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So just to let the audience

know, matters that require public hearings are advertised in the

newspaper and the opening matter that's on our agenda tonight is a

matter that we just heard. However, I am open to allowing the

speaker to speak to this particular item if it is such the desire of the

Commission, so Commissioners if you would like to open a public

hearing or at least have someone to speak to this Agenda Item, I

have happy to entertain that motion.
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COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Sheldon.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I would like to suggest that we

open the floor, not call it public hearing, but call it a citizen comment

and I think it would be -- it's always helpful to here what our citizens

have to say, so I would make a motion that we allow the person to

speak.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Is there second.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second, Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. It's been motioned and

properly -- it's been moved and properly seconded that we allow the

speaker to speak to this Agenda Item, as what what we will call

speaker comment period. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: Hearing none, the ayes have it. Would

you please identify the speaker and at that time, would you please

approach the podium.

(Whereupon Speaker Richard White approaches the podium.)

MS. CARTER: Speaker is Richard H. White of White & White

Insurance Agency at 2882 East Point Street.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Mr. White.

RICHARD WHITE: Good afternoon.

COMMISSIONERS: Good afternoon.

RICHARD WHITE: How ya'll doing?
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COMMISSIONERS: Good.

RICHARD WHITE: My concern is that we are located in a

banking financial service area where we have insurance agencies,

real estate agencies, banks as you know, those kinds of thing and

what is being proposed to come in off of East Point Street is an

entrance way and an exit for traffic coming into the CVS, which does

going to be located on another street altogether. So what we would

like to have considered is another entrance way so that we might be

able to development that sidewalk frontage and Main Street frontage.

The if it was East Point Street, the fact that City Hall and most of the

financial services act specifically on that particular street, then it's

more like Main Street than it is anything else 'cause on the other

street, you have more sole business as well as you have the Marta.

So it seems to me that that would be the most likely place for the

entrance go and to work around that so that that particular part of

the landscape there could be still used for financial services and

customers banking and those kinds of things. That's my biggest

concern and I wanted to put that on the record. Also my neighboring

business is housed in by that particular piece of land. He has, in

place, uh an offer to buy so as to expand his operation there by bring

jobs and those kind of things. Second thing that CVS would be bring

to the area, not opposed to CVS, but I am opposed to a drive-thru

area there for a number of reasons. First of all, is that it could be

used to enhance the already businesses that are there, the financial

services, banks, real estate, insurance, investment and those kinds of
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things, so I don't know if a study has been done as to whether or not

the feasibility with all of the area you have there, that's not going to

be used that the main entrance can be from that side and no

entrance from the East Point side. That's what I'd like to do -- to

say.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you Mr. White. Staff, are

there any other comment cards for this Agenda Item?

MS. CARTER: No, sir.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. I would like to proposed

that since we have open up this time for comment, if the applicant is

here, since we have had someone to already speak to this, if the

applicant would also like to speak even though a comment card was

not submitted. Is anybody here?

AUDIENCE: I would like to speak if that's okay.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Would you like us to make a

motion or we just got public comments at this point --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Just, yeah. We'll just -- we'll open

it up to public comments. The applicant can come at this time.

(Whereupon the Applicant Mark Gottlieb approaches the

podium.)

MARK GOTTLIEB: Hi. My name is Mark Gottlieb. I'm with

Metro Group Development. I'm the applicant and this is Brian Morris

with Foresite Group Engineering.

MARK GOTTLIEB: And I think you already have this -- I

know you have -- the colored version of the landscaping plan that's
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been done. If I may show that. As you are aware, the property that

we're purchasing includes the funeral home property that's here and

the VFW Hall that owns this property here. The funeral home is

closing or it's closed. The VFW Hall has, I guess, meeting that's

sporadically. There's not a single piece of grass on this property from

the landscape -- landscaping perspective. We've complied with all

the requirements of the overlay district here. We street fronted the

building very, very extensive landscaping and where Mr. White's

property is, we met briefly before the meeting -- there's 11 curb cuts

on the property now between the three roads and we're eliminating

those to four. So we're eliminating seven curb cuts there just now.

We had talked to Mr. White earlier. He had concern about a

thoroughfare, which makes sense coming between --

BRIAN MORRIS: East Point Street and Main.

MARK GOTTLIEB: -- Main Street to East Point, so we met

before and I showed him that the curb cut here is coming into the

parking area. It is not really convenient to go here, here and there

especially when Dorsey Avenue is straight across already so it doesn't

seem like people will be using there to cut through to the other

street. This is to enable people to come in and access the parking

field in the back. We've also offered to Mr. White a curb cut to our

curb cut, if he wishes it. If he wants to be closed, we'll work with the

City on closing that curb cut, either way. We'll do whatever he'd like

to do with curb cut. We've also said if an evening, he wants to keep

protected, we'll put a gate, some kind of metal gate. He can close it
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off if he has no employees in the parking lot. If he wishes for us to

continue the landscaping all the way across, we would do that.

We're landscaping the complete buffer along the back. This property

now have trees and shrubbery where there's no landscaping now.

He's looking at a, I believe, it's a garage in the back of the funeral

home, so we feel like we're improving the situation quite a bit from

what's there now, but we're willing to work with him and try to make

this the best situation we can for what he's trying to do.

BRIAN MORRIS: And we -- and, you know, and to add to

that, you know, Main Street and East Point Street are both Georgia

DOT roads. We had met with Mike Lobdell of the Chamblee District.

He's seen the plan and approved the conception based on our traffic

study that we provided to him.

MARK GOTTLIEB: And we did do a traffic study if that's the

question Mr. White had.

BRIAN MORRIS: Yeah, and we did provide that to him. Like

I said, we are going from eleven cuts now that are out to down to

four and we've located them, you know, as far away from the

intersection as we can get them, you know, for safety concern, the

site distance and then the same on East Point Street and then we've

also got one right and right out on East Washington or Washington

Road that we got approval through the City as well.

MARK GOTTLIEB: So we're eliminating full access to riding

right out. The other thing that I guess you probably have seen is

where there's no monument signs on the property, but we're
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proposing to build a Welcome to East Point 6-Foot high monument

sign that have a (inaudible) base with CVS Pharmacy on the bottom

portion, just kind of sponsor. There are no other -- the only other

signs at the other entrances are just uh, 2-foot high directional signs.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And that -- that sign only

diagonal, right?

MARK GOTTLIEB: I'm sorry?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are they diagonal?

MARK GOTTLIEB: You know, we'll -- we need to work to see

where -- right now, we have it on a straight basis there, but we could

put it at an angel. We have plenty of room for landscaping on the

corner. We can show it there on that main corner. And I -- and this

may not be part of the process, but if anybody would like to see

elevations we have the elevations we can show as well.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: We did see the elevations in the

Work Session.

MARK GOTTLIEB: You did? Okay.

BRIAN MORRIS: Well and I think that --

MARK GOTTLIEB: The only change is -- let me say one

thing. The only change is we did have a four side elevation so we're

now showing all four sides.

BRIAN MORRIS: Yeah, the previous elevation only showed

like a pretty typical layout where you'd have parking on both sides of

the building and this one has been updated to reflect the current lay

out, which --
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MARK GOTTLIEB: So it's all -- it's all brick. The (inaudible)

and stone base on the bottom. All four sides are, you know,

(inaudible). The front actually is the side that faces -- you showed

them the site plan? The front actually faces aside the parking field so

we'll have a faux front facing the corner, but the actual front

entrance will be on there, so it's kind of two fronts elevations to the

building.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All right. Thank you.

MARK GOTTLIEB: You're welcome.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All right. Is there anyone else here

this evening that would like to speak to this case? You will approach

the podium. Give your first and last name and your address, sir.

WILLIAM HOWARD: Okay. Thank you.

(Whereupon William Howard approaches the podium.

WILLIAM HOWARD: My name is William Howard and I'm

representing New Beginning Realty, which is 2870 East Point Street

and it's next to Mr. White's facility and what I had wanted to know is

we were planning on -- I don't know if the buyer -- if the seller is

here or not, but also he was referred to purchasing that lot in

between our companies and once they gave their presentation, I

guess, the buyer -- the seller would have to be here for us to present

our signed contact to them, correct?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yeah. This wouldn't be the

appropriate meeting for that.

WILLIAM HOWARD: Right. That's what I was counting on
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what Mr. White had said in representing New Beginning.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you. All right. Any

other speakers?

AUDIENCE: (No response.).

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Commissioners, at this time, I'll

entertain a motion to close the public comment period.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares, seconded by Commissioner Washington that we close the

public comment period for this Agenda Item. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public comments period for this Agenda Item is now closed.

Staff, would you please sound your recommendation.

MS. CARTER: Staff's recommendation for Case Number 2013

"P" as in Paul-005-02, Metro Group Development II, LLC is approval.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, you've

heard from the applicant. You've also heard from some of the other

business owners in the area. You've also heard Staff's

recommendation. At this time, I'll entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I move that we go ahead and

approve Case Number 2013P-005 --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Microphone.

COMMISSIONER WARES: -- -02.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. The motion from

Commissioner Wares is that we approve Case Number 2013 "P" as in

Paul-005-02. That motion was properly seconded by Commissioner

Rene. All in -- is there any discussion?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I have a

question for Staff.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Does all of this meet the

recommendations for the architectural overlay in regard to parking on

the street front?

MS. CARTER: Yes, it meets the architectural overlay, but

another item that it also meets is the T Grant, so Mr. Bryant Morris

met with Genesa and Anthony, our Transportation Engineer and it

meets the T Grant as well as the architectural overlay.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay. And that includes the

presence of a drive-thru?

MS. CARTER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay.
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COMMISSIONER WARES: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Wares.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Could we hear just a little bit for

the public -- just a little bit about the T Grant so that they will

understand -- but just a tiny bit of snitching?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioner Wares would

like for you to give us the elevator presentation about the T Grant if

you would, please, Staff.

MS. CARTER: Unfortunately, that's out of my purview. The

T Grant started a long time ago. I've been with East Point five years

and it started prior to me coming to East Point. That is a Genesa --

Genesa and Anthony Economic Development and another -- Rubin,

who is our grants manager. That is a combination of variation

departments and if I'm not mistaking it is Moreland Altobelli is the

engineering. That I would have to get Genesa to do a synopsis of

what actually goes on with the T Grant. It's my understanding that

right now it goes all the way down Main Street to College Park and

up Main Street as far as the Grady Clinic.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Or this is a federal grant,

correct?

MS. CARTER: Yes.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Okay.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Thank you. I have a question

about the sidewalks around the property and in the preliminary plat
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will we address the sidewalks preliminary or final plat for this

property? What is -- what is the width of the sidewalks that are being

proposed?

BRIAN MORRIS: We are showing the um, the street project

-- we have obtained the plans and we have actually -- we have

shown on street parking and the 12-foot what sidewalk adjacent to

along our road fronts on Main Street, so -- and we do have our

driveway that splits it. Um, on the original plans, the uh, the parking

was shown on either side of the four existing curb cuts that were

there now, so we're closing all of those except for our new cut, so

and then we're installing four at the lower entrance, four north of our

entrance and then the property, you know, it stops at our property

line here then it would open it up to continue the project north if it

actually comes through, so we are showing that on our plans and

plan on permitting it when we kind of (inaudible).

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: But the width of the sidewalk?

BRIAN MORRIS: I believe it is 12 feet.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Is there someone who

knows for certain?

BRIAN MORRIS: I've got a scale.

MARK GOTTLIEB: Yeah, he'll get a scale, but I want to point

out the question about the grant and the road work. We'll be coming

in most likely before the -- Gill do the work and if so, we have to

install it ourselves at our cost, so we're showing on our plans what is

the -- to be in the future to be done and if we come in before it's
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actually installed, we have to install it, so we're showing those on our

plan assuming we're gonna come in before all the work starts.

BRIAN MORRIS: Yes, I think, Anthony Brown had mentioned

it was -- now, it's pushed back to 2015 start and, you know,

obviously, we're gonna be in before that.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: It shows a 5-foot sidewalk on

the south.

BRIAN MORRIS: Yeah, we're showing 12-feet along Main

Street. Now on -- on Washington Road and East Point Street the

project doesn't continue on as part of this, so we're showing the

required five-foot landscape strip and 5-foot sidewalk off of

(inaudible) as required by the code.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. And so that's really why I

wanted to ask the question because, I guess, eventually because it's

on the corner and appreciative of the 12-foot sidewalks along Main

Street, but even though the code says a minimum of 5-feet on

Washington Road and you've got in an entire block there, would you

not be able to also put 12-foot sidewalks so that it is consistent? The

idea is that eventually, we would like to encourage pedestrian activity

and I believe that the wider the sidewalk the better, so would you

not be able to match that width along Washington Road?

MARK GOTTLIEB: You could fit in --

BRIAN MORRIS: We could do ten --

MARK GOTTLIEB: We could do 10-foot. We have a 10-foot

landscape strip behind the sidewalk in addition to a 5-foot in front of
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it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

MARK GOTTLIEB: So we'd have 15-feet of landscaping dash

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yeah.

MARK GOTTLIEB: -- with a 5-foot sidewalk, but we could

make -- have the sidewalk go up to 10-Feet.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: That makes sense.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: That would look better, too.

That would be more (inaudible) --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, exactly. And so their both --

they're major thoroughfares and so I think that if we're gonna do

new construction at this corner and it's gonna be almost --

MARK GOTTLIEB: But we can agree to that.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: -- an entry point there and we're

having the Welcome to East Point sign a very narrow, puny 5-foot

sidewalk. So do we need to do --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Do we need to do a condition?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Do we need to do a condition for

that? Okay. So there's a motion to approve this and I would like a

substitute -- I would like to substitute that motion to approve with

the condition that the sidewalk along Washington Road is a 10-foot

sidewalk and will the second still stand? I believe that there was a

second.

COMMISSIONER WASHINGTON: Yes.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: The second will still stand. Okay.

So now there's a substitute motion on the floor so it's approval with

conditions. Are there any other comments?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS:

MS. CARTER: Let me make sure that I have this correct.

Along the Washington Road corridor, it will be a 10-foot sidewalk on

a 5-foot landscaping --

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: I think you got a 5-foot

landscape strip already depicted and then you would have a

10-sidewalk behind that 5-foot landscaping strip and then you would

additionally have landscaping behind the 10-foot sidewalk, correct.

BRIAN MORRIS: Well, right now we have 5-foot landscape

strip, 5-foot sidewalk and then a 10-foot landscape --

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Correct.

BRIAN MORRIS: -- on the concept.

MATT GOTTLIEB: So we would do 5-foot landscaping,

10-foot -- 5-foot landscaping --

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Right.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yes.

MATT GOTTLIEB: If you say distance, we take five -- for

landscape conversion sidewalk.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Exactly.

MATT GOTTLIEB: Do five, ten and five.

MS. CARTER: Okay.
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MATT GOTTLIEB: We're fine with doing that.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Exactly. So that's the condition

and that's the motion. There's a second to a motion on the floor.

It's been properly seconded. Commissioners, are there any other

comments?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, all in favor sound

aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: The ayes have it. Thank you.

MATT GOTTLIEB: Thank you very much.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, we're

gonna continue to move along the agenda. Our next Agenda Item is

2013 "P" as in Paul-006-03. This particular Agenda Item is also a

preliminary plat and I would like to extend the same courtesy for this

preliminary plat. It does not require a public hearing and so

Commissioners, I will entertain a motion for public comment for this

Agenda Item.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Rene.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I would like to make a

recommendation for -- to open public comments.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Is there a second.
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COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Rene, seconded by Commissioner Wares that we open up a public

comment period for Case Number 2013 "P" as in Paul-006-03. All in

favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

Um, at this time, if the applicant is here for East Cleveland Avenue

and Springdale Preliminary Plat application -- and if you would like to

speak.

(Whereupon Applicant Ledbetter Properties, LLC

representatives David Buckel and Robert Brown approaches the

podium.)

MS. CARTER: You want me to sound it?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, we'll have Staff to sound it.

MS. CARTER: The application is 2013P-006-03, Ledbetter

Properties, LLC. Location is East Cleveland and Springdale/Sylvan

Preliminary Plat.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

DAVID BUCKEL: Good evening. I'm David Buckel with

Duplantis Design Group, 1745 Chattahoochee Run Drive, Suwanee,

Georgia. We are a civil engineering consultant.
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ROBERT ROUGELY: I am Robert Rougely with Brown Design

Group, 3099 Washington Road, East Point, 30344. We're the

architect consultant.

RICHARD BUCKEL: Good evening. It's good to see

everyone. Just a brief overview. I think we covered it but -- so this

is a site located at -- between -- on Cleveland Avenue between

Springdale and Sylvan, mostly made up of existing apartment

complex and which we are demoing. After we DEMO that, we'll have

a Walmart Super Center, some retail shops, three proposed out

parcels and then the fourth one would be the existing grocery store

which will remain. It's currently occupied and will continue to be

occupied via their lease. We have been through the rezoning

process. Got approve back in December and been working with City

for about a year on it, so it will be all the conditions from the zoning

and plus we have received the preliminary conditions for the plat and

are okay with those also, so I'll let Robert give a quick talk on the

building. Thank you.

ROBERT BROWN: Good evening again. Based on the

elevations that we've developed -- thank you. The elevations that

we've developed met the overlay district requirement and we've also

worked with Staff on materials, the screening requirements. We

were able to get this, I guess, preliminarily looked at and there are

some conditions on the elevations that we have to meet and then we

did receive a couple of variances with regard to the amount of

fenestration on the building, the window and -- so basically, this has
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gone through a preliminary process with Staff just like the site plan

has and we have come to this level of elevations.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there anything else that you

would like to present regarding your project?

DAVID BUCKEL: We can answer questions if you have some.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I'll get more speakers if there are

more speakers here and if any of the Commissioners have questions,

we'll be able to do that.

DAVID BUCKEL: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any others in the

audience tonight would like to speak to this Agenda Item?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Are there any others here tonight

that would like to speak to this Agenda Item?

AUDIENCE: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Seeing none, Commissioners, I'll

entertain a motion to close the public comment period.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Wares, seconded by Commissioner Rene that we close the public

comment period. All in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.
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COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

The public comment period is now closing. Staff, would you please

sound your recommendation.

MS. CARTER: For Case 2013P-006-03, Ledbetter Properties

at East Cleveland and Springdale and Sylvan Road, Staff recommends

approval with the following conditions: Condition Number One, a

signed copy of Approval Ordinance Number 010-12 (A) as in apple,

shall be included on the preliminary plat; Item Number Two,

conditions of zoning and the concurrent variances approved under

Ordinance Numbers 010-12 (A) as in apple, shall apply to out parcels

1 through 6. The detention pond adjacent to Sylvan Road shall be

secure with decorative wrought iron fencing, 6 feet in height and

screened with enhanced landscaping along the perimeter fence line.

Item Number Four, outside display and storage of, including but not

limited to merchandise equipment, tools, materials etcetera is

prohibited. Item Number Five, all refuged pallet and organic

recycling area shall be screened from the public right-of-way in an

enclosed area constructive of material similar to the principle building

structure. Six, all landscaping materials shall be in accordance with

Part 10, Chapter 6 of the City's Tree Protection and Landscaping

Ordinance. The tree planting shall be a mixture of large hardwood

and softwoods and small trees. Pine tree planting shall not exceed

10 percent of the total number of trees planted on site. Number

Seven, the southwest corner of the site, adjacent to Sylvan Road,
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shall be designated and maintained as an open green space area.

Internal, I'm sorry, Number Eight, internal sidewalk shall be required

for pedestrian connectivity between access drives and external

sidewalks. Number Nine, the gardens and racks shall be screened

with a combination of decorative wrought iron fencing and masonry

material similar to the principle structure. Building constructive --

Number Ten, building constructive with outparcel five shall be

constructed of similar material as the principle building combination

of glass, brickstone and colored masonry units known as quick brick

and cemented stucco; A), the rear wall ovation facing Sylvan Road

shall be a faux store front entrance with combination of glass and

brick -- glass, brick and stone. Pedestrian connectivity will be a hard

scape decorative path, shall be required between the outparcel and

the principle building. Number Eleven, where there may be a conflict

between the conditions of zoning and the conditions of the

preliminary plat, the most restrictive shall apply.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Staff, you've heard from the

applicant. You've also heard Staff's recommendation and Staff's

conditions. At this time, I'll entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Mr. Chair.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes, Commissioner Rene.

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: I recommend to make a motion for

recommendation for the approval of 2013P-006-03.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is that with conditions?

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Yes, sir, that's with the conditions.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Is there a second.

COMMISSIONER WARES: I second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. There's been a motion for

approval with conditions and is second for second. At this time, I'll

entertain any discussion from the Commissioners.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: You go -- go ahead first. You go

first.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: My list might be a little bit long.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: That's fine.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: I will first start with the Staff's

conditions. Lets go to Number Two. It says -- that is what I want to

do so that we can perfect the record. It says, "out parcels 1 through

6" and I really think that they're lots 1 through 5 and there a main

parcel so I don't really know if there's an outparcel six.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: I have the same comment. I

think that what we're looking -- what I'm looking at anyway is

something that had labels Lots 1 through 6 and I would recommend

that any where in the conditions where outparcel is stated that that

be substituted for the word, lot --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: -- so that it's clear that those

conditions apply to lots 1 through 6. I think the word, outparcel is

also in Condition Number Ten and that should be replaced with lot --

I'm kind of looking over Regina's shoulder, so I may have missed it,

but I could say where ever outparcel is it should be substituted with
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the word, lot.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: No, you got them both --

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: -- because those are the ones that

I circled. Okay. And so I think that -- so we should say, lots 1

through 6 and so that would be my first. Secondly, I want to go

down -- I'm gonna come back to that one. I have a question of Staff.

Condition Number Seven speak to the southwest corner of the site

adjacent to Sylvan Road shall be designated and maintained as an

open space, a green space area. Can you give us a little bit of the

contact as to why Staff is recommending that that particular piece of

the property remain open green space?

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: It's a corner.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Yes. Originally, when this

application came in there was some (inaudible) development in this --

in this particular corner. There was some detention pond identified

as going into this area and Staff noted that the detention areas had

been moved to what is now designated on a preliminary plat

(inaudible). It was felt that given that this particular area in the

southwest corner in approximate Sylvan Road applied to some

residential uses even though it's not residentially zoned, that there

was some merit to preserving this as green space or open space to

present any future development such as storage areas, additional

parking. It was felt by Staff that that would be inappropriate to

develop in that area so that's why that condition was proposed to
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make sure that it wasn't further developed and intruded upon.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you for that

contract. So now I have a question of the applicant. So then having

heard that, is there -- can you talk to me a little bit about your plans

for any type of buffer? Are you plan to put any kind of landscape

buffer along the very southern part of the property where it abuts

that area or any type of wrought iron or brick fence to match

contextually with the materials used in the building?

DAVID BUCKLEY: So currently, in this area -- so the -- this

existing buffer will remain all along the back except in this area

where we'll be enhancing it um, where we had a gray -- that was one

of the zoning conditions. We do have street trees going in, specimen

tress along Sylvan. We are required for the zoning conditions to put

a fence all the way around. It was not wrought iron though. It was

a green chain link fence. That was one thing they wanted. They

wanted us to fence off the entire site against residential property.

We were gonna carry it here because it would -- people -- citizen

talked about cut through and that it would be a good idea to fence it

off, so this is pretty steep probably not a good one so we're gonna

be -- I think two things they mentioned. When we originally looked

at this plan, we had three detention ponds. We had a small pond

back here, which we're still -- it's not a pond, but we are catching this

offsite water and then we had two ponds over here on Sylvan. We

combined them and we were able to get enough volume in this pond.

We ran into some rock over here when we did the Geotech Report.
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We got a lot of unsuitable material over here that'll have to be

undercut to stabilize those slopes, so this area over here, we're

gonna be using to mine out good material 'cause there is good

material from the GeoTech report to build these slopes and then

we're gonna just -- that material and grass it, so we have no

problem with that being in, you know, green space, so we can surely

enhance some landscaping over here.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes. So that's -- that will be -- do

it once again.

DAVID BUCKEL: Oh, I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So where I see the -- because

you're required to fence the property, which will be all along the

southern side and go all the way down to the western tip, because it

will be a wrought iron (inaudible) fence and I see that there is some

landscaping proposed as it relates to behind what is now labeled as

the Walmart Super Center, but then it stops and so is there a reason

why you didn't want to continue that landscaping to join the

landscaping that will be along Sylvan Road where the wrought iron --

where the uh, chaining fence will be?

DAVID BUCKLEY: Well, this is all existing trees today, so we

just -- we didn't -- we were able to do a tree sampling area. That's

one of the options so we meet the (inaudible). One thing we had

talked about and I think some -- we would like Staff to consider

about the ten percent -- the landscape architect, you know, and we

were -- we like to supplement sometimes pine trees in those area not
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for decorative, but more some screening, right. I mean, hardwoods

are good for -- along roadways, but they don't -- she lose their leaves

and their foilage and they don't act as screen. Now, listen, we meet

the density requirements per the City ordinance. We actually

exceeded so, you know, if ten percent is all, then we'll use that ten

percent accordingly, you know. I would just ask for a little flexibility

again with Staff maybe to consider 20 to 30 percent there. Again,

that's just something that we can use to, you know, add whether or

not it's there, there it's on the slopes passing pines. It's more of a

visual barrier.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So there're already -- there's

already a landscape buffer that would connect from Sylvan around

there?

DAVID BUCKEL: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So what I would like to

have happen is I wouldn't want you all to come and cut down that

buffer to the extent that it, I guess, impedes on the residential

properties that are adjacent to it and so are you okay with -- do you

feel that you need to take any of those down? Are you okay --

erecting your fence and leaving that landscaping buffer there?

DAVID BUCKEL: Well, there's a 50 foot (inaudible) but just so

you know, like in that area -- and there's a preliminary landscape

plan, but these apartments are already in it, so when we DEMO that,

we're gonna add some planting back in that buffer 'cause we have to

enhance the buffer per the zoning, so I just got this in today. I didn't
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get a chance to get back with the landscape architect, but that buffer

will have to be enhanced where ever it's less vegetated, so we will

enhance that. That's part of the zoning conditions we already have

so to answer your question, this will be -- that 50 foot will remain.

We're not taking any trees out of the 50 foot and we'll have to

enhance where ever there is isn't trees for the zoning condition.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So for the record the

applicant says they will not take any trees out of that landscape

buffer. If anything, they would add to that area.

DAVID BUCKEL: And this area is different.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Thank you. That

addresses that. I also have -- hold on just one second. In the

Number Ten where Staff calls it in Ten (A), Staff refers to it as the

rear wall. When I look at the drawing, I think the rear wall is really

on the south, so I'd like to be a little more specific. I think it's really

the west wall what is now labeled as --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Rear wall elevation?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yes. I think it's really the west

wall and not really the rear wall, so I'd like to be really more specific

and so I'd like to substitute west as opposed to rear for Ten (A).

Okay.

DAVID BUCKEL: Excuse me. Can we -- this is a suggestion.

You know, I think you had a great point about lot -- you know, that

being Lot 5. Maybe in parenthesis or something we can say the Retail

Tracts so people know that Lot 5 is the retail shops here. This is a
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suggestion.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. The west wall elevation of

the retail tract facing Sylvan Road so that's what Ten (A) shall read,

the west wall elevation of the retail fact facing Sylvan Road, dot, dot,

dot shall be -- okay. Um, then I have a few other questions. Um,

your sidewalk, this particular property is, of course, a major

thoroughfare. Uh, the City of East Point only has a few major

commercial corridors and Cleveland Avenue is definitely one of those

and so I'd like to encourage pedestrian traffic so can you tell me

what your sidewalk width is not only on Cleveland Avenue, but also

on Sylvan and on Springdale?

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah, Regina and I -- I sent Anthony and

Regina -- I couldn't find anywhere in the ordinance. I know

originally, we had 5 feet shown and but right now, we have 6 foot

shown, but I have a -- we couldn't find any ordinance. We deleted, I

believe, it's either 6 or 7 feet and I'm not positive and I had put an

email into Anthony, too. I think Anthony had mentioned 7 feet, so

the exiting sidewalk out there today, which we were looking at

preserving about 6.5 feet wide today but -- so if we're able to

preserve it, we will and we'll leave that and we are going -- we had

proposed 6 foot. If it needs to be 7, whatever the ordinance is, we'll

meet that ordinance and we carry the same thing around here and

uh, we had proposed 5 foot in the site except along these strips we

had 7 feet because we have cars, head-in parking and so we had

some extra width for that to accommodate any overhang.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So now the challenges

because we're talking about cars in a parking lot and 7 foot

sidewalks and we're talking about cars coming down a multilane road

and we're only talking about preserving 6 and a half feet, so I'm a

little challenged with that. I need you to help we out with that.

DAVID BUCKEL: Okay. Well, this is because you have

head-in parking so you potentially have overhang onto the parking

lot, so it's a -- really a 5 foot sidewalk when 7, having a little 2-Foot

strip where a car hangs over. You plant shrugs, they get beat up, we

just carry the sidewalk all the way out. That's why it's 7 feet. Really,

the first 2 feet acts as almost a concrete buffer if you want to call it

that.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So let me get to this

because this is more of where I'm going.

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah. Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Um, do you have opposition to

widening the sidewalk because we're really trying to increase

pedestrian traffic and make really Cleveland Avenue a very

pedestrian-friendly corridor and clear that I would want that to

happen and I would imagine that as a developer, you may also, to

drive traffic to the retail outfits there for this project.

DAVID BUCKEL: I mean, obviously, you know, we were

trying to preserve, but I think it's -- is it a deal-breaker to go from 6

feet to 7 feet, no. I don't know what your looking at. I mean, you

know, what the challenges is here is obviously the topography and
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the slopes and everything else we have, so I mean, we didn't -- I

mean, again, the project is got a lot of issues. I understand that and

a lot of things. Um, what I would say is, you know, it's something we

obviously could consider along Cleveland. You know I think along

here, I do believe it's 6 foot and along maybe Springdale 'cause it is a

deadend street. It's probably sufficient, you know. I wouldn't want

to put extra width there for those and that. You know, we're

challenged here. This pond is at capacity right now. We have a lot

of out site drainage and we open to be submitting engineering plans

next week to start the permitting process. We currently can probably

fit seven feet along this section, but we might be able to get 10. I

mean, you know, we can trade off some landscaping over there for

maybe some sidewalk and along Cleveland, you know, if it's a -- we'll

just have to tear up what we were gonna save and I think that's

really the big thing we have to make a decision on.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: You wouldn't put new sidewalk in

with the new development? Those sidewalk are probably the first

sidewalks on Cleveland Avenue.

DAVID BUCKLEY: Yeah, I mean, we can. I mean, we didn't

originally budget, but we can obviously so well, if we want 10 foot

sidewalk along here, I think we can look at it. I mean, one of the

zoning conditions as a bus turnout. We met with Marta. They're not

really wanting a bus turnout right now. They don't have any other

bus turnout along their thing so, you know, it's -- I'm trying to tie

down those zoning conditions with the other constraints so, I mean,
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can we do 10 foot along Cleveland? Sure.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So that was a sure.

DAVID BUCKEL: Mr. Ledbetter might kill me, but I'll buy

them.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So this -- this is what I'd like to

condition that -- for this particular condition is a minimum of 10 foot

sidewalks along Cleveland Avenue. I will go with you with the 6-Foot

sidewalks along Springdale because that is a deadend and then on

Sylvan, a minimum of 8 foot. I don't know if we necessarily need to

go to 10.

DAVID BUCKEL: Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Sounds great.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: That'll be fair. All right. The other

thing -- I have a few more. The other thing is that looking at the

drawings -- the site plan that we have, what I don't see on what we

have is I don't see any landscaping in the parking lot and so let me

ask you this question first. What is the total number of parking

spaces so far that you have shown on this particular site plan?

DAVID BUCKEL: We got our 4.5 per thousand and a total of

769 spaces for the overall site so we're at a 4/5.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. So 769 spaces. I don't see

any kind of landscaping in their islands, but it looks like you might

have some landscaping if my eyes aren't fooling me on what you

have there.

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah, yeah. So that was just a site plan on
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the landscape plan so we got two trees in every island. We got --

this zoning condition we got these trees are 30 foot on center. We

got 30 foot on center along the perimeters. We got trees in every

island abdomen we got trees along the main stretch so -- and

obviously, we're gonna go through Staff and they'll be comments to

the plans as we work through it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

DAVID BUCKEL: But we are gonna -- again, we're gonna

exceed the landscaping requirements, you know, 'cause we already

meet the density, so it's just a matter of really just working with Staff

and that's why I was suggesting that that 10 percent, you know, if

they want us to enhance another area, it just depends what, you

know -- you kind of tie your hands when you put a low number, so

we don't have to show any pine trees, but once you say 10 percent

then you -- you really limit your flexibility, so ---

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: We want 10 percent as it relates

to palm trees.

DAVID BUCKEL: Okay. Okay. I'll deal with it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So now, let me ask a question for

Lots 1,2,3 and 4.

DAVID BUCKEL: The parking that you showed here is that

parking also gonna be sufficient to serve those lots also. So we're

not talking about any additional parking, correct?

DAVID BUCKEL: This parking is just for the retail shops and

the Walmart. They have to meet their own parking requirements.
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COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. And so that's sort of where

I'm going because I don't really know -- well, I see this like 1.7 acres,

6.4 acre, 1.2 acre and 1.2 acres. My only challenge is that just trying

to change the nature in the face of Cleveland Avenue and, of course,

trying to encourage and spur a more economic development. I just

don't want to go a sea of parking and I look at -- if I further up

Cleveland Avenue, the supermarket there and all of that parking,

which is not always used -- I also look at the Walmart on Howell Mill

and that parking deck and, of course, parking is on the very bottom.

That's never all used. I know that it is a much larger Walmart than

this model right here and so I'm just a little challenged with the lots

around this and we're already at 769 parking spaces and then to

have to go back and add more parking spaces, I think it's a real

opportunity to get more rental of retail space and I just don't know if

they'll all be used, so --

DAVID BUCKLEY: So -- oh, well, I mean, so, I mean, I think

Howell Mill um, when you look at those, you have a lot of other retail

shops that had a park out at a 4.5 or a 5.0 per thousand. Every

county is a little different. Dekalb still has 5/5 ratio. They use to

negotiate on things, right so Walmart proto is a 5 per thousand. We

drop to four and a half. You know, these shops, depending on your

tenants, if you have any restaurant uses, those are higher ratios, so,

you know, I don't think this is -- when you look at the associate

parking, the number of associates they have in a store this size, a 4/5

is a pretty good number based on -- Walmart doesn't want to build
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any bigger parking lots than they need because they have to buy

more land, cost more money --

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Right, no. I'm fine. I'm fine with

what you have. My thing is that once we start to build out Lots 1, 2,

3 and 4, it looks like Lot 5 is already taken care of. There's already

parking that addresses Lot 5 then we're adding more parking, so

we're adding to the 769, which, of course, increases storm water

runoff and all of those other issues and I know that given those

ratios, I know that there are parking requirement. Oftentimes I see

big parking lots under utilized.

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah. I mean, I think there -- the thing is

we feel good about the parking here and for these, they have -- we

don't know who the tenant is gonna be and, you know, these guys

have restrictions put on parking because you can get a restaurant

used that has, you know, where code might require twelve per

thousand and they might not be able to meet it, you know, then they

have to kind of maybe talk to us and I think they address that with

some cross access parking on the out lot.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: What's ours, four and a half per

thousand?

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Is that right? Yeah.

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah, y'all typical is four and a half.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Four and a half per thousand.

MS. CARTER: Dependent upon the build on -- I think it's

outparcels may have to meet theirs dependent upon the building size
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and the use. No matter what was -- what is behind it, each one of

those, whatever the building is will have to meet that as well

'cause -- and also for that detention pond because now we only have

one detention pond, but this is the preliminary plat. It still have to go

through LDP?

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah, we'll be submitted to LDP, which is,

you know, gonna be these plans you're looking at so --

MS. CARTER: Right. And then they'll go through final, so

final will come back to --

DAVID BUCKEL: The final plat is after it's built to my

understand.

MS. CARTER: Right, but these will not have those buildings

on it when you do final?

DAVID BUCKEL: No, probably not, right.

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: And just as a -- the point

Mr. Chair, you know. When we went through the zoning modification

on this particular piece of party with respect to the outparcels, there

was a condition put in place with respect to the parking in front on

Cleveland Avenue and the modification conditions such -- the it

provided that the Cleveland Avenue parking has to be screened with

a 5-foot berm um, planted heavily um, with Evergreen vegetation

and shrubbery um, approved by the director so that there will be -- if

there is parking in the front of these out -- that it out lots, that it will

be screened by that 5-foot berm and will be heavily vegetated and

that was partially due to the visuals that we want to create on
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Cleveland Avenue and out of the concerns for storm water runoff.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. All right. Thank you. And

then my last piece is uh, this detention pond and we talked a little bit

about that in our Work Session last week and I'm not sure if you had

an opportunity to mull that over and come back to us with any new

ideas because I great one. I am thinking that with this detention

pond, because it is on Sylvan Road and it's gonna be so large

because it's (inaudible) these parcels, all of these lots, that I want to

condition that this detention pond is a water feature on Sylvan Road.

DAVID BUCKEL: The problem is it's a dry pond. It's a

detention pond, not a retention pond. There's no continuous flow to

the pond to keep water in it so when it rains -- oh, I'm sorry.

MS. CARTER: I'm sorry to cut you off. If you will switch with

Robert so that the stenographer can hear you.

DAVID BUCKEL: But that is a detention pond, not a retention

pond so there's no continuous flow of water to it to hold water, so

you know, we'll bring -- we'd have to, you know, do -- water fall will

be first and it will need the blue book and then detention up to a

hundred year storm and release it so over time, that will drown -- I

mean, drain all the way down. There's just not a continuous feed to

keep water in it. The water tables are like 16 to 17 feet. Well, I

mean, when you see these water features in Florida or -- where, you

know, you dig into the water table, so I think that's the problem, you

know. There's just -- there's not a way of doing it. What we are

going to do is try to help with that stream -- is bring the wrought iron
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fence up to street level and I'm gonna step away from the "mic" at

and just point. So this is the hundred dollar year flow elevation and,

you know, we normal would put the fence right there, but we're

gonna, on this area, we're gonna bring the fence up at street level

and I did a little cross section and I'll just step up and read it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Now, one thing we did do

is put -- so we got the sidewalk and we have a 15-foot landscape

strip -- and I think I emailed that if you want to share -- and then we

brought the fence there with the (inaudible) so we really can screen

that pond and we're gonna hold that fence up high even along this

area. We just -- we just got to make sure we don't block site

distance.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: And I see that there is some --

some type of vegetation --

DAVID BUCKEL: Uninhabited. That's required by our zoning

condition.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Is that just on the outside of the

wire.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Now, is there anything that

we can put into of detention pond to make it for esthetically

appealing to.

DAVID BUCKEL: Well, we can't put any trees or anything

that not alive, but we are gonna look at, you know -- obviously, I

talked to a landscape office about, I don't know if it's love grass or
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what's the best thing that's more low maintenance and we're gonna

look at some to see if any options are there, but it sits so far down. I

mean that pond is 20 feet deep. I think we can do a pretty good job

screening it at the road elevation and we -- obviously, with the

shops, we screened it -- before, it would have been really visible from

the parking lot, so I think that shops are gonna screen it from the

parking lot.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Yeah. My main concern is the

visibility from Sylvan and -- so that would be my major concern.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I don't think it's gonna show

because of the depth of it.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So with that -- give this section --

this cross section back to you. I think that those were all the things

that I wanted to address, but I think that Commissioner Rene wanted

to --

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Actually, he answered it. I wanted

to know about the vegetation surrounding the west wall and the

retention pond but I think you answered the answer. The only

question, I guess, in addition to that would be how high would the

vegetation be because what happens I understand that the esthetic

in that area it could be improved a lot and if the vegetation was a

little hire, especially along that fence, it will probably deter walk ins

or cut throughs because if it's lower, then you will still have a

problem whether you have a fence or not with walk-through, so, you

know, with that in mind, it's just a suggestion that a vegetation be as
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high as you could bring it and more greenery that would remain year

around, you know, and that are some shrubbery that could do that as

well.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Maybe it's probably sticks you in

your --

COMMISSIONER RENÉ: Yes, ma'am. That's exactly my

suggestion, but I think that if the shrubbery -- the vegetation be hire

so that it would discourage walk-through and -- and I know that

there will a fence, but, you know, people are known to cut fences to

can you not the walk-through as well, but if the vegetation is hire

then that would discourage the walk through as well.

DAVID BUCKEL: And one thing we're doing is um, I should

have mentioned, we are bringing sidewalks all the way around from

the street up to the building, so we're gonna make it really

pedestrian friendly. I don't think anybody's ever wanted to transfer

that slope so.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, are there

any other questions?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So as far as the conditions what

we're doing is the motion is to approve with conditions. The

conditions that Staff stated with the following changes: We are

substituting the word, "outparcels" with the word, "lot". We are also

substituting in Ten (A) the word, "rear" with the word, "west" and

we're adding of the retail tracts. So Ten (A) shall read, "Westward
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elevation of the retail tract facing Sylvan Road shall be a faux store

front entrance with combinations of glass, brick and stone." And

we're also added a condition as it relates to sidewalk and we're

conditioning a minimum of 10-foot sidewalks along Cleveland, 8-foor

sidewalks along Sylvan, 6-foot sidewalks along Springdale.

DAVID BUCKEL: So on Springdale we have a 5-foot -- you

know, we had room to put the 5-foot greenery and then the

sidewalk, but on Cleveland and Sylvan, we have the sidewalk right up

against the ---because of the slope going back, we have, you know,

the 10-foot pedestrian sidewalk right along. Is that your

understanding of what your vision? Okay.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Um-hum.

DAVID BUCKEL: I just wanted to make sure that we were

clear of that.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yeah. We'll come back later and

ask you guys on everything. No, I'm kidding. I'm just kidding.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Did I get all of the um, as is

conditions?

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: Yes, with the possible

exception that his treatment here of the detention pond. You know,

unless it is specifically conditioned to provide for what has been

described of the applicant tonight, there would be no obligation to do

that and my understanding is that he is proposing to have a 15-foot

landscape strip fronting along Sylvan Road additionally that you were

going to have some sort of landscaping as it rounds the corner of the
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entrance?

DAVID BUCKEL: Well, I mean, when you get beyond the

sidewalk, it's all landscape, so I mean, I'm just talking about the flat

area up there right now is 15 feet. I mean, there's -- I don't know

how these power holes running there and stuff so...

ATTORNEY LINDA DUNLAVY: And there's also an agreement

to put the fence at the top of the property as opposed to further

back.

DAVID BUCKEL: Well, another that section of it along -- we

were required by the existing zoning condition to put the hedge and I

thing bringing the fence up there, which would help with the

esthetics.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Right. And I think that the

attorney is stating is that um, I don't think that it's required by the

zoning for to you put the fence at that point and so what we want to

do is to condition that to make sure that the fence will go there and

so lets further out the correct verbage for that. So the fence along --

the fencing around the detention pond along the west side of the

property, which is Sylvan Road should be erected at street level. Let

me see the cross section. What will be the best way for us to

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: I would say at street level

directly positioned directly behind the required edge.

DAVID BUCKEL: Yeah, I would say approximate, you know,

just in case it sits --

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yes.
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DAVID BUCKEL: Approximate street level, right.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So our condition is that the -- and

that only on the Sylvan side because the other side, the wrought iron

fence and -- well, if it's all -- it has to been zoning will go all the way

around the detention pond, but on the Sylvan side, the fence where

the detention pond shall be erected at street level directly behind the

required landscaping.

DAVID BUCKEL: The only thing I would suggest is that when

we look at site distance, I might have to (inaudible) that corner when

we get to the intersection to ensure we have sight sight distance.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So there are a total of 13

conditions. Total of 13 conditions so Commissioners, it's been moved

and properly seconded --

COMMISSIONER WARES: Oh, Mr. Chair. Just one more

question. We talked about in the Work Session uh, in front of the

detention pond that Lot 5 would decide -- the shops are there and I

know that you said they would marketed, so everything that we

talked about in the Work Session with the sidewalks and where the

trash bins and all that stuff will go is that already written into the

program, it's the proposal?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: You're exactly correct. We discuss

in Work Session that on the north side of the building, the retail tract

of Lot 5, north side, Lot 5, yes, that there would be on the north side

is where the refuse would go, the trash would go and that would

mean that a sidewalk would wrap around the building so it would be
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on the south, the west and the north side to link to where trash

would be. So they're 14 conditions. Okay.

COMMISSIONER WARES: And is there gonna be a fence

there that side of the detention pond? Is there a fence there

between the sidewalk and Lot 5?

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: The fence would be to go around

the -- all the around the detention pond.

COMMISSIONER WARES: Okay. Just wanted to make sure.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: So there are actually 14

conditions. All right. So Commissioners, the last condition that we

just went over is the sidewalk around the retail tract in Lot 5.

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Staff, do you have all of

that.

MS. CARTER: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Great. Commissioners,

there's been a motion and a second with several edits to the

condition made by Staff and a few additions.

COMMISSIONER WARES: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: If there's no more discussion all in

favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing the ayes have it. Okay.
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That brings us to the conclusion of New Businesses -- New Business.

Staff, at this time, if you have any announcements.

VIII: ANNOUNCEMENTS:

MS. CARTER: No sir.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Commissioners, are there

any announcements?

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Okay. Seeing none, I'll entertain a

motion to adjourn.

IX. ADJOURNMENT:

COMMISSIONER SHELDON: So moved.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WARES: Second.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: It's been moved by Commissioner

Sheldon and seconded by Commissioner Wares that we adjourn. All

in favor sound aye.

COMMISSIONERS: Aye.

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: All opposed sound nay.

COMMISSIONERS: (No response.)

COMMISSIONER ATKINS: Hearing none, the ayes have it.

This meeting is now adjourned.

(Whereupon this concludes the City of East Point Planning

and Zoning Commission meeting of April 18, 2013.)
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